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November 6, 2014 
 
Molly C. Dwyer, Clerk of Court 
United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit 
95 Seventh Street 
San Francisco, CA  94103-1526 
Attn:  Susan Soong 
 
RE: In re National Security Letter, Nos. 13-15957, 13-16731, & 13-16732 
 [Argued before Judges Ikuta, N.R. Smith, and Murguia on October 8, 2014] 
 
Dear Ms. Dwyer: 
 
 Oral argument in the above-referenced appeals was held before Judges Ikuta, 
N.R. Smith, and Murguia on October 8, 2014.  Counsel for the NSL recipients in 
these cases has recently brought to our attention an inadvertent misstatement by 
government counsel during the rebuttal portion of the argument.  We are 
submitting this letter to correct that error. 
 
 The misstatement occurred during a discussion regarding the disclosures that 
are permitted under the Government’s discretionary enforcement decisions as set 
forth in a letter from the Deputy Attorney General dated January 27, 2014.  That 
letter, which is attached hereto, states that a company may report in bands of 250 
(starting with 0-249) its receipt of total national security processes during a 
specified period, or, alternatively, in bands of 1000 (starting with 0-999) its receipt 
of certain individual processes, including NSLs, during such a period.  See Gov’t 
Reply Br. Nos. 13-15957/13-16731, at 23 n.8.  In the course of discussing 
disclosures described in this letter, approximately 49 minutes into the Court’s 
recording of the argument, government counsel indicated that if a company 
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discloses that it is in one of these two bands starting with zero, it could publicly 
discuss the fact that it had received one or more NSLs and could discuss the quality 
of the specific NSL(s) that it had received. 
 
 That suggestion was mistaken.  The district court correctly noted that “the 
NSL nondisclosure provisions . . . apply, without distinction, to both the content of 
the NSLs and to the very fact of having received one.”  ER 21 in No. 13-15957.  
This has always been the government’s position.  See, e.g., Gov’t Opening Br. 
Nos. 13-15957/13-16731, at 14-15, 29; Gov’t Answering Br. No. 13-16732, at 13-
14, 27; Gov’t Reply Br. Nos. 13-15957/13-16731, at 11-12, 20, 23.  The NSL 
recipients here have likewise taken the position in this Court that § 2709(c) 
“permits the FBI to gag recipients about not only the content of the NSL but also 
as ‘to the very fact of having received one.’”  Appellee Answering Brief in No. 13-
15957/Appellant Opening Brief in No. 13-16731, at 46 (quoting In re Nat’l Sec. 
Letter, 930 F. Supp. 2d at 1075); Appellant Opening Br.  No. 13-16732, at 47 
(quoting In re Nat’l Sec. Letter, 930 F. Supp. 2d at 1075).  The fact that a company 
may disclose that it has received 0-249 national security processes or 0-999 NSLs 
in a given period does not, by itself,  allow that company to disclose that it has 
actually received one or more NSLs; the lower end of these bands was set at 0, 
rather than 1, in order to avoid such disclosures.  A company can, however, 
disclose that it has actually received NSLs if it employs one of the NSL-specific 
bands as described in the Deputy Attorney General’s letter starting at 1000 or 
above.1 
  

1  The Deputy Attorney General’s letter also addresses the disclosure, in 
bands of 1000, of “[t]he number of customer accounts affected by NSLs.”  These 
disclosures are similar to the banded disclosures of the actual number of NSLs 
received; a company’s disclosure that 0-999 of its customer accounts were affected 
by NSLs would not, by itself, allow that company to disclose that it has actually 
received one or more NSLs, but a company’s disclosure, as described in the 
Deputy Attorney General’s letter, that 1000 or more of its customer accounts were 
affected by NSLs would necessarily disclose the receipt of one or more NSLs. 
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 We regret this inadvertent inaccuracy and apologize for any confusion that 
may have been caused.  Please bring this letter to the prompt attention of the panel. 
 
 Sincerely, 

 
 
 /s/ Jonathan H. Levy 
 Jonathan H. Levy 
 Attorney, Appellate Staff 

Civil Division 
 

CC: Cindy Cohn (ECF and email) 
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